HAMPSTEAD HEATH, HIGHGATE WOOD AND QUEEN'S PARK COMMITTEE Monday, 17 July 2017

Minutes of the meeting of the Hampstead Heath, Highgate Wood and Queen's Park Committee held at Committee Rooms, 2nd Floor, West Wing, Guildhall on Monday, 17 July 2017 at 1.45 pm

Present

Members:

Karina Dostalova (Chairman)
Anne Fairweather (Deputy Chairman)
Deputy John Tomlinson
William Upton
Councillor Melvin Cohen
Sam Cooper
Councillor Sally Gimson
Maija Roberts

Officers:

Bob Warnock
Richard Gentry
Alison Elam
Esther Sumner
Edward Wood
Superintendent of Hampstead Heath
Constabulary and Queen's Park Manager
Group Accountant, Chamberlain's Department
Business Manager, Open Spaces Department
Comptroller and City Solicitor's Department

Declan Gallagher Operational Service Manager

Colin Buttery Director of Open Space

Carl Locsin Media Officer (Public Services)

Alison Hurley Head of Facilities Management – Assistant Director

Grace Rawnsley

Bose Kayode

Alistair MacLellan

Community Education Officer
Town Clerk's Department
Town Clerk's Department

1. APOLOGIES

Apologies had been received from Michael Hudson, Deputy Clare James, Ruby Sayed, Rachel Evans and Graeme Smith.

2. MEMBERS DECLARATIONS UNDER THE CODE OF CONDUCT IN RESPECT OF ITEMS ON THIS AGENDA

There were no declarations.

3.1 Minutes

The public minutes and summary of the Hampstead Heath, Highgate Wood and Queen's Park Committee meeting held on 15 May 2017 were approved and agreed by the committee as an accurate record.

3.2 Highgate Wood Consultative Group

Members noted the minutes of the Highgate Wood Consultative Group meeting held on 31 May 2017.

3.3 Queen's Park Consultative Group

Members noted the minutes of the Queen's Park Consultative Group meeting held on 14 June 2017.

3.4 Hampstead Heath Consultative Committee

Members noted the minutes of the Hampstead Heath Consultative Committee meeting held on 19 June 2017.

4. OPEN SPACES BUSINESS PLAN ANNUAL REPORT 2016/17

Members considered a report of the Director of Open Spaces which focused on the developments within the Department during the period 2016/17.

In response to a question relating to the missed percentage performance target of H&S accidents investigated within 14 days, Members were informed that the figure, having been referred to the Health & Safety group, was not an area of concern. Whilst the performance target had been missed, it was suggested that there was a need for nuance in the reporting of H&S incidents.

In response to a question relating to the missed target on consumption and what work was being done to ensure that the target is met in the future, Members were informed that consumption would need to be considered in further detail and would be reported on at the next meeting.

RECEIVED

5. OPEN SPACES EVENTS POLICY

Members noted the report from the Director of Open Spaces. It is proposed that consultation takes place from autumn 2017 to early 2018 with the local Consultative Groups which would allow the Events Policy to be considered by each Committee prior to the spring.

RECEIVED

6. REVENUE OUTTURN 2016/17

Members noted the joint report from the Chamberlain and the Director of Open Spaces, which compared the revenue outturn for services overseen by the Committee in 2016/17 with the final agreed budget for the year. Members noted the revenue outturn report for 2016/17 and the consequential implications for the 2017/18 budget.

In response to a question relating to the final agreed budget and having a breakdown of what the monies had been spent on Members were informed that

estimates would be made available in December identifying how any monies would be spent.

It was agreed that the Chamberlain would meet with one of the Members to look at the format of the report with a view to separating income and expenditure.

RECEIVED

7. PIF PROPOSAL - PONDS PROJECT LEGACY REPORT

Members considered a report of the Director of Open Spaces which outlined details of the Hampstead Heath Ponds.

In response to a question relating to how the carry forward from an existing project fitted with this project, Members were informed that the Learning Programme had received a grant from City Bridge Trust to assist with the budget. In addition, there had been an 'uplift' to the budget from transferred funds.

In response to a question relating to links made with other schools conducting STEM engineering work, Members were informed that no links had yet been made. However, a combined and flexible approach would be taken. In addition, it was suggested that links were made with Knowledge Quarter.

RESOLVED - That: -

(a) Members support an application to the Policy Initiatives Fund to extend the STEM & Policy Education Programme for a further year.

8. STEM AND POLICY EDUCATION PROGRAMME LEGACY - POLICY INITIATIVES FUND APPLICATION

It was noted that item 8 was a duplicate of agenda item (7) above and therefore this report was withdrawn.

9. **SUPERINTENDENT'S UPDATE**

Members considered a joint report of the Superintendent of Hampstead Heath, which provided an update to Members on the management and operational activities across the Division since May 2017.

The following updates were given:

Eruv

Members received an update on the proposals. It was noted that the applicant had revised the proposal to use the existing lamp columns along Hampstead Lane to support the Eruv. The updated proposal therefore, avoids the need for sections of fencing on Hampstead Heath but poles to support the Eruv over the access to Athlone House Gardens and the Kenwood Nursery Yard would still be necessary with the Highway pavement.

The Superintendent confirmed there were no changes to the proposal for the Eruv at Wind Mill Hill.

Drone Guidance

Members discussed the Drone guidance and whether a byelaw should be applied for. It was considered that whilst it would be beneficial to commence research into implementing a byelaw, there is work being carried out by the Government, and therefore the process could be duplicated.

It was considered that if a byelaw is implemented those needing to use drones could apply for a license. Were this to be implemented, the guidance should clearly set out how to apply for a license.

Tennis Regulations

Members were informed that the regulations had been updated to include information about ClubSpark, an online booking system.

'Give It A Go'

Members were informed that the 'Give It A Go' event which took place on 16 July was a success with a number of individuals attending to take part in a range of games, sports coaching, dancing, health and well-being and children's activities.

Cycling

Members were informed of the intention to combine the cycling group and 'Heath for Feet' into a Pedestrian and Cycling Working Group and for there to be an inaugural meeting in September 2017.

In response to a question relating to whether those visiting Hampstead Heath could be caused physical harm from the Oak Processionary Moth (OPM), Members were informed that there is guidance available on the website in relation to OPM.. In addition, Members were informed that trees identified as having OPM nests are cordoned off with green netting.

RESOLVED - That: -

- (a) Members agreed the proposal for licencing a 4m Eruv pole at Wind Mill Hill;
- (b) n Eruv pole;
- (c) Members agreed the revised Drone Guidance;
- (d) Members agreed the revised Tennis Regulations for Hampstead Heath & Queen's Park.

10. EAST HEATH CAR PARK RESURFACING

Members considered a report of the Superintendent of Hampstead Heath, which informed Members of the options for resurfacing the East Heath Car Park. It was noted that the project is currently going through the Corporate Gateway Approval Process and it is estimated the works will cost in the region of £365,000.

RESOLVED - That: -

(a) Members agreed with the proposal in relation to Option 2 – Asphalt and Chip finish. It was noted that the finish was in keeping with the preferred path surfacing finish across the Heath. In addition, a comprehensive positive drainage system will be installed to manage surface water runoff from the Car Park.

11. ANNUAL REPORT ON HAMPSTEAD HEATH CONSTABULARY

Members considered a report of the Superintendent of Hampstead Heath, which provides a review of the performance and effectiveness of the Hampstead Heath Constabulary during the period 1 April 2016 to 31 March 2017.

In addition, the Superintendent of Hampstead Heath provided a verbal update of recent court cases and fines which had been issued. Of the 28 processes submitted to Court, 26 had been upheld. It was noted that the fines are means tested and the success of convictions demonstrates that the Courts take incidents occurring on the Heath seriously.

In response to a question relating to the partnership working with the Terrence Higgins Trust (THT) and what the Heath achieves from the partnership working, Members were informed that THT is able to engage with users of the Heath and provide an understanding of the impact of actions on the environment and therefore continued partnership is beneficial.

RESOLVED - That: -

- (a) Members noted the report, and, in particular, recognised the continuous development and improvement of the Hampstead Heath Constabulary's performance across a range of activities.
- (b) Members noted the role the Hampstead Heath Constabulary plays in helping to ensure that Hampstead Heath remains a safe, appealing and enjoyable place for millions to visit each year, by reducing the fear of crime and anti-social behaviour.
- (c) Members supported the continuation of partnership work on Hampstead Heath during 2017 by the Hampstead Heath Constabulary, Terrence Higgins Trust and other stakeholders and partners.

12. QUEEN'S PARK CAFÉ - OPTIONS APPRAISAL

Members considered a report of the Superintendent of Hampstead Heath, which outlined the engagement and consultation exercise which was carried out in relation to the café provision at Queen's Park. A total of 391 responses were received. The feedback received suggests that the café is valued as a community hub and an important asset in the Park. The quality and cost of food, along with the ambience were factors that were considered important by the public.

RESOLVED - That: -

- (a) Members noted the outcomes of the public engagement and consultation:
- (b) Members noted the views of the Queen's Park Consultative Group following the June meeting;
- (c) Members agreed the Superintendent's proposed option regarding the Café Lease.

13. QUEEN'S PARK FARM REVITALISATION PROJECT

Members considered a report of the Superintendent of Hampstead Heath, which outlined the Queen's Park Farm Vision which had been developed to promote greater public engagement.

In addition, the Superintendent of Hampstead Heath provided a verbal update and informed Members that the Farm receives approximately 80,000 visitors per year. There is a donation box within the farm area which generates approximately £2k per annum. This money is reinvested back into the farm.

RESOLVED - That: -

- (a) Members noted the views of the Queen's Park Consultative Group following the June meeting.
- (b) Members agreed the Vision and Outcomes; and
- (c) Members agreed with option 2 in relation to the Queen's Park Farm Visualisation Drawings.

14. QUEEN'S PARK PLAY AREA TOILETS - ADDITION OF A TOILET

Members considered a report of the Superintendent of Hampstead Heath, which provided an update on a scoping exercise which had been carried out for the development of an additional public toilet to be provided at the Children's Sand Pit. The additional toilet would give access from one side only and would be accessible for wheelchair users, and would contain a baby changing table.

In addition, the Superintendent of Hampstead Heath provided an oral update and informed Members that the indicative cost for the exercise is around £44k and would take approximately six – eight weeks to complete. If approval were to be given, consideration would need to be given as to the appropriate time for the works to be completed.

RESOLVED - That: -

- (a) Members noted the views of the Queen's Park Consultative Group following the June meeting; and
- (b) Members approved the Outline Design Proposals and approved Option 3.

15. CYCLICAL WORKS PROGRAMME BID - 2018/19

Members considered a report of the City Surveyor regarding the provisional list of cyclical projects being considered for properties under the management of Hampstead Heath, Highgate Wood and Queen's Park Committee under the "Cyclical Works Programme".

The draft cyclical project list for 2018/19 totalled approximately £1.68m and if approved would continue the on-going programme of maintenance of the City's property and infrastructure assets.

In response to a question relating to the Queens Park Play Area Toilets and why it was not listed within the schedule of works, Members were informed that the works would be recorded under 'minor' improvements and would be funded from local risk.

RECEIVED

16. QUESTIONS ON MATTERS RELATING TO THE WORK OF THE COMMITTEE

There were no questions.

17. ANY OTHER BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIRMAN CONSIDERS URGENT

The Chairman directed Members to a letter, which outlined the revised dates and times of future meetings. The Chairman sought member's views as to any difficulties in attending meetings moving forward.

The overall consensus was that the alteration to the dates and times of future meetings was appropriate. It was therefore agreed that the revised dates and times of meetings would be circulated to Members and future meetings would take place as follows:

27 September 2017 – 16:00 15 November 2017 – 16:00 21 February 2018 – 16:00 23 May 2018 – 16:00 28 November 2018 – 16:00

18. **EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC RESOLVED –** That: -

(a) Under Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the public be excluded from the meeting for the following items on the grounds that they involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined by Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act.

19. **NON-PUBLIC MINUTES RESOLVED –** That: -

(a) The non-public minutes of the meeting held on 15 May 2017 were agreed as an accurate record.

20. QUESTIONS ON MATTERS RELATING TO THE WORK OF THE COMMITTEE

There were no questions.

21. ANY OTHER BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIRMAN CONSIDERS URGENT AND WHICH THE COMMITTEE AGREE SHOULD BE CONSIDERED WHILST THE PUBLIC ARE EXCLUDED

There was no other business.

22. DATE OF NEXT MEETING

To note the date of the next meeting is 27 September 2017.

The meeting ended at 3.25 pm

Chairman

Contact Officer: Bose Kayode

Bose.Kayode@cityoflondon.gov.uk